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REVIE

| am pleased to present the 2011-2012 Annual Report, the
sixth and the last during my tenure as Chairman of the Legal
Aid Services Council.

2011 was a year worth remembering. On 27 May 2011, the
Council held its first Cross-strait Legal Aid Conference. The
purpose of the conference was to provide a forum for sharing
information and experience about legal aid practices in the
Mainland, Taiwan, Macau and Hong Kong. It also provided
networking opportunities for legal aid practitioners and
policy formulation personnel of the four places. The Council
was honoured to have the Chief Justice, the Honourable
Geoffrey Ma, and Chairperson of the International Legal Aid
Group, Professor Alan Paterson from Scotland, as keynote
speakers. The Honourable Mr Justice Johnson Lam, Judge
of the Court of First Instance of the High Court, also spoke
at the conference luncheon. Other speakers included the
Director and the Deputy Section Chief of the Department
of Legal Aid of the Ministry of Justice, the People’s Republic
of China; the Chairperson and a representative of the
Legal Aid Foundation, Taiwan; the Director of Legal Affairs
Bureau, Macau; Assistant Director of Legal Aid (Application
& Processing) of Legal Aid Department, Hong Kong; and
members of our Council. The conference was very well-
received. More than 110 attendees including officials of
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REVIEW

legal aid authorities, legal aid practitioners, academics, and
representatives of non-governmental organizations from the

four places participated in the conference.

In the previous report, | mentioned that the Council
submitted its recommendations on the scope of
Supplementary Legal Aid Scheme (SLAS) to the Chief

Executive in December 2010.

In March 2011, the

Administration, after taking into account the Council’s
advice and recommendations as well as views from relevant
stakeholders, presented its proposal to the Panel on
Administration of Justice and Legal Services (AJLS Panel) of
the Legislative Council. Details of the Administration’s views
are given in the “Review of Supplementary Legal Aid Scheme”
in Chapter 6. The Council is pleased to know that legislative
amendments to the Legal Aid Ordinance and Regulations
to give effect to the expansion of the Ordinary Legal Aid
Scheme (OLAS) as well as the SLAS are in progress and will
hopefully be passed before the end of the 2011/12 legislative

year.

Pursuant to Section 4(5) of the Legal Aid Services Council
Ordinance (Cap.489), the Council is the Chief Executive’s
advisory body on Government policy concerning publicly
funded legal aid services provided by the Legal Aid
Department. The Council shall advise on, among other
things, the feasibility and desirability of the establishment
of an independent legal aid authority. As mentioned in the
last report, the Council had invited all the firms/ institutions/
universities that had submitted their Expression of Interest
(Eol) to undertake a consultancy study on the matter to
submit their proposal. Out of the six proposals received, the
Working Party on Independence of Legal Aid, after detailed
examination of the proposals, recommended to the Council
to appoint Deloitte Consulting (Hong Kong) limited to
undertake the study. The objectives of the consultancy study

are:
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(@ to examine the overall feasibility and desirability of
establishing an independent legal aid authority in Hong
Kong;

(b) to compare various operational models for
administering legal aid services in Hong Kong to
examine their merits, demerits, costs and benefits;

(© torecommend the best model for administering legal
aid services in Hong Kong; and

(d) to propose an implementation plan for setting up an
independent legal aid authority, if an independent
authority is recommended.

The Council approved the recommendation and the
consultancy study commenced in late 2011. The Consultant
has completed both the study of overseas practices and
consultation with stakeholders and is working on the
report, which is unfortunately behind the Council’s planned
schedule. The Council will make recommendations to the
Chief Executive after considering the report of the study.
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RER - RREAEBERERSEE R In an effort to enhance the scope of legal aid services to
THRRERHER - the community, the Council has asked the Interest Group

e _ (IG) on Scope of Legal Aid to study the desirability and
RMELEEEEDRE AREX viability of providing legal advice to people detained by

\r%@%ﬂzﬁ%@’bﬁm ﬁ%'ﬁﬂ&f} law enforcement agencies, notably the police and the
RS %’D{'JE/E:Z%%D%E/A% ’ %]j"f Independent Commission against Corruption. At present,
MATRUERE RHA RILA AT many of these individuals do not have any ready legal advice

e BRI ARZEBALEEREA  \\pe, they are first detained and they may not be aware of

B Iy @ﬁj 5§§5§§Eﬂ H%E?’Et‘@%:? their legal rights and privileges when they are interrogated by
TALBRERABABEIBERE  he law enforcement agency concerned during the period of

BBEEBHERBEANMAS B their detention. This situation is unsatisfactory. The IG, with
{Pﬁ@ﬁ‘?‘ ’ @’J\%EE/‘J\&;_%\% Qﬁléﬁi? members coming from a wide spectrum of the community,
REE jﬂl {Fﬂﬁmﬁﬁ”_@ﬁiﬁiﬁ is studying a possible pilot scheme. Stakeholders including
B BUSERY  MEZERSXEEER  ojovant government departments and the two legal
{08 IMEURLEE 2 54aTah » R/ T 5|8 professional bodies have been invited to participate in the
BENBRRRNESR « KBE2012%F  gofieration. To bring focus to the issue and to solicit views
SREM T —EMaE - MEERREA  fom 3 wider spectrum, the Council organised a seminar on
AR EEE AR RRITHE subject in May 2012. It is hopeful that a pilot scheme
REE  EEKERMNEE2RE—E
BENER -

will be worked out for submission to the Administration for
consideration in the coming months. It will be an important
step in the area of criminal legal aid.

RBARBELAF BN AREE
o FARORAARAEEBEEEE | sna)l soon retire from the Council after nearly six years of
RHBEPEHNEERRMNSS B e My heartfelt appreciation goes to the members
FRRIRBLAAT LS ~ MBAEER 2 5 the Coundil for their invaluable contributions and
ABEEBRBRDRE  TRIDEFMR support during my tenure as Chairman. They have been
FRIOFINE - R HRAHEER very generous in volunteering their time, knowledge and
RERNERIE  FEZEERER experience for the betterment of legal aid services in Hong
8 ERRRALHRMBFHE - {m Kong. It has been a pleasure and my privilege working with
{HET\E%EE P HEARBITE X thom | am also very grateful to the Council Secretariat for
AR - 5%&\Ijj i EEP _JEE"‘ZE%E’J% their dedication and professionalism. | would also like to
= &Eﬁ'b‘xﬁgﬁrﬁm ' #ERE  thank staff of the Legal Aid Department, the legal profession
AR BREZEERDHAL A 50 the many stakeholders who have contributed to the
BHEERBERIAANTS  8RERM ok of Councl in different ways. Rule of Law is one of the

i most important cornerstones underpinning the success of
Hong Kong. | am confident that the Council will continue to
work towards upholding the rule of law by ensuring access
to justice and equality before the law for people of limited
means.
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VISION

The Council actively contributes to upholding and enhancing
the rule of law by striving to ensure access to justice and
equality before the law to people of limited means.

MISSION

1.

To ensure provision of high quality, efficient and
effective legal aid services and to secure adequate
funding therefor.

To seek to improve continually the legal and
administrative systems concerning and affecting the
provision of legal aid.

To help increase public awareness of legal aid.

To keep under review the establishment of an
independent legal aid authority.

VALUES

1.

Committed : The Council is committed to its work and
upholds its VMV because it believes that legal aid is
essential to the rule of law and the Council contributes
positively to legal aid services. While adhering to the
provisions of the Legal Aid Services Council Ordinance,
the Council endeavours to improve the provisions of
the Ordinance in pursuit of its VMV.

Independent and Fair : A greater degree of
independence in legal aid administration was one of
the reasons for establishing the Council in 1996, and
independence is therefore one of its core values. Thus,
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R BYERARROE while acknowledging the interest or view of different
B — o EERBARA @ B EERIA stakeholders, the Council will take a disinterested
HHEFNER - REFERIAA position and pursue a course of action that is most
BEANYIEREER  REMIES appropriate in contributing to the rule of law and
HEREAREAIAAFSEHEMNES equality before the law. The Council will not ignore any
N ARAGREAES R LHRER fact or view that may be presented to it.

HAERSEEER -

3. Accessible : One of the reasons for establishing

3. BRER: M ZTS)%EI’J—@)?IE the Council was to broaden public participation in
EAASY HESEHRRE - XF legal aid administration. The Council will make such
e b e . HEADERA arrangements as to facilitate members of the public
BHABEY  EABSEES to obtain open information regarding the Council,
5% NEAYEARBIBE or communicate with the Council on specific issues,
HMERT TR e REAR or take part actively or passively in its work without
BT - ABYETEAD « Filz prejudicing the discharge of its responsibilities. The
88 T A S e AN R R B Council will be accessible to the public, to stakeholders,
A B - and to interested parties locally or overseas.

4. Transparent : A better understanding of the Council
will enhance trust in the Council and legal aid services
being provided. It is a pre-requisite for active public
participation in the Council’s work. Therefore, the
Council will make known to the public its work without
breaching confidentiality in respect of specific issues or
on specific occasions.

4. BHBMHD  MARARBEBRADHS
MBAREARRREERRBNE
£ ETARAREMBEARF T
MRS - Rt ERERKFE
EHIABFESAARENERLT -
ENGESEIVNGYN RN = IR

5. BIMRE :  EXMERRE > AFA 5  Responsive : the Council has to be responsive for two

HHEE - Bk EEEREZERE reasons. Firstly, legal aid service is provided within a
ANt EREFREERE - R TH wider environment. In order to provide sound advice
EREBREETENER  BHE on legal aid policy and to supervise effectively legal
EERERENERRE  XRA aid services provided by LAD, the Council has to be
HE® « KBLBUAIRR - EEE sensitive and proactive in respect of changes in social,
DS ESTE-E 10 - X</ 0= R 1 economic and political conditions, legal practices
EES - X BARKFIE and technological innovation. Secondly, timely
“@ﬂfﬂjﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’]@ﬁé H%Vr"bi_v and comprehensive response to public complaints
BEREVREATEBERE  AtE or enquiries will build a more effective channel of
BhARE Lﬁ%%ﬁﬁ/ ELAEE communication with members of the public, and will
BhER - AREFEEREARE contribute to greater public participation in legal aid
5 RENHBMRE - I REERIT administration through the Council. The Council is
g o ready to listen, to follow up with research, to deliberate
and to act promptly.
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Mr Paul Chan is a member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. He is an accountant by profession and
is a former President of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants —
Hong Kong. He is the Chairman of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited.
Mr Chan has served on many boards and committees of governmental
and public bodies such as the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
and the Strategic Development Commission. Mr Chan holds an MBA
degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and has also studied
at the Harvard Business School. He has frequently lectured, on a
visiting basis, for universities, chambers of commerce, newspapers and
professional institutions.

FREREREXFEHRL
Paul CHAN Mo-po
MBA, FCPA, MH, JP,

Chairman
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Virginia CHOI

Virginia Choi JP. is Managing Consultant and Country Manager of Tamty
McGill Consultants International Ltd. She has over 25 years of experience
in HR management, especially in training and development.

FIHRM, JP

Virginia was President of the HKIHRM from 2001 to 2005, HKIHRM'’s
first female President since its inception in 1977. She is now Executive
Council Member of the HKIHRM and advisor to its Learning and
Development Committee.

Virginia was elected Chairperson of the Continuing Professional
Development Alliance in June 2004 in her capacity as President of the
HKIHRM. She has been Chairperson of the Alliance since then, and in
this capacity, had served on the Manpower Development Committee of
the then Education and Manpower Bureau. Virginia actively participates
in various boards, committees and councils including the government’s
Pay Trend Survey Committee, Standing Commission on Civil Service
Salaries and Conditions of Service, Open University of Hong Kong,
Central Policy Unit, Equal Opportunities Commission, Employees
Retraining Board, Personal Data (Privacy) Advisory Committee, and Legal
Aid Services Council.

13
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Mr Michael Delaney is a graduate of the Nottingham University and
qualified as a solicitor in the United Kingdom in 1981. He came to Hong
Kong in 1985 and practiced as a solicitor until 1991 and then was called
to the Bar. Mr Delaney has been on the Duty Lawyers free legal advice
panel for over 15 years and gives lectures on behalf of the Bar Advanced
Education.

INBRfE K12 EM
Michael DELANEY
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Dr Witman Hung is a Chartered Information Technology Professional and

currently the Executive Vice President and Co-founder of Next Horizon & '
Company Ltd.,, a company that provides finance and administration :
share services for multiple clients on a global basis from China. He is also s RE4

currently the President of the Internet Professional Association. DrHUNG b witman HUNG Wai-man
has worked in the computer industry for 24 years and is a renowned  pnp MBA MA LLM FHKIoD FBCS
industry leader. He is also very active in community services including — cp

serving on Road Safety Patrol, Internet Professional Association and the Y

Elites Association. In 2007, Dr Hung was awarded the Secretary for Home

Affairs Commendation by the HKSAR Government. He was awarded Ten

Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 2008, 40+ distinguished

fellow in 2011 and Capital Entrepreneur of the yearin 2012.
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Mr Stephen Hung is the Vice-President of the Law Society of Hong
Kong. He is currently the Chairman of the Standing committee on
Compliance, Criminal Law and Procedure Committee, and Legal
Education Committee.

As a representative of the Law Society of Hong Kong, Mr Hung serves
on the Council of the Duty Lawyer Service; PCLL Academic Board of the
Chinese University of Hong Kong; and PCLL Academic Board of the City
University of Hong Kong. In his own capacity, Mr Hung serves on the
Higher Rights Assessment Board; and Law Reform Commission, Sub-
committee on Causing or Allowing the Death of a Child.

Mr Hung is also an Adjunct Professor of Law of Hong Kong Shue Yan
University.

Mr Hung was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong 1995. He is currently
a Partner of Messrs. Pang, Wan & Choi.

REIE (S 12AM
Stephen HUNG Wan-shun
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Dr Lee George Lam holds a BSc in Mathematics and Sciences, an MSc in Systems Science, and an MBA, all
from the University of Ottawa in Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma in Public Administration from Carleton
University in Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma in English and Hong Kong Law and an LLB (Hons) in law
from Manchester Metropolitan University in the UK, an LLM in law from the University of Wolverhampton in
the UK, a PCLL in law from the City University of Hong Kong, a Certificate in Professional Accountancy from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong SCS, and a PhD from the University of Hong Kong. Dr Lam has over 30
years of international experience in general management, management consulting, corporate governance,
investment banking and fund management. Dr Lam is Chairman of Monte Jade Science and Technology
Association of Hong Kong, and serves as an independent or non-executive director of several publicly-
listed companies in the Asia Pacific region. Having served as a Part-time Member of the Central Policy
Unit of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for two terms and as a Member
of the Legal Aid Services Council of Hong Kong, Dr Lam is a Member of the Jilin Province Committee
(and formerly a Specially-invited Member of the Zhejiang Province Committee) of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, a Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a Board Member of
the East-West Center Foundation, a Member of the Young Presidents’ Organization, a Member of the Chief
Executives Organization, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Arbitrators, a Member of the General Council and the Corporate Governance Committee of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies, a Vice President of the Hong Kong Real Estate Association, a
founding Board Member and the Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong-Vietnam Chamber of Commerce,
a Board Member of the Australian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong, a Board Member of Hong Kong
Education City Limited, and a visiting professor (in the fields of corporate governance and investment
banking) at the School of Economics & Management of Tsinghua University in Beijing.
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Mr Edward Leung is a District Council Member, a registered social worker
and the Executive Director of Hong Kong Playground Association. Mr
Leung is very active in community services. He was the Vice-chairman  sp g 4 4 2 e+

of Yau Tsim Mong District Council from 2004 to 2011, Hong Kong  gqward LEUNG Wai-kuen
Association of Youth Development and West Kowloon New Dynamic,

the Chairman of Union Power for Neighbourhood and Yau Tsim Mong

District Civic Education Campaign Co-ordinating Committee, and

the Subcommittee Chairman of Yau Tsim Mong District Healthy City

Committee and the Environment & Conservation Fund Committee.

He has sat on various committees including the District Advisory

Committee of Urban Redevelopment Authority, the District Customer

Advisory Committee of China Light & Power Company, Yau Tsim Mong

District Fight Crime Committee, Yau Tsim Mong District Management

Committee and Yau Tsim Mong East Area Committee. He is now a

member of the Municipal Services Appeal Board.
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Born and educated in Hong Kong, Ms Corinne Remedios was admitted
to the Hong Kong Bar in 1978. She is familiar with issues that arise over
legal aid as she has a practice which includes both civil and criminal
cases. She has been a volunteer lawyer for the Duty Lawyer Service
since the scheme was established. She has sat on various committees  a == 55 4 2 £
including the Bar Association’s Special Committee on Personal Injuries ¢ rinne REMEDIOS
and Special Committee on Family Law, the Working Group and the

Steering Committee on the Pilot Scheme for the Reform of Ancillary

Relief Procedure, and the Hong Kong Committee on Children’s Rights,

etc.
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1. The Book on Mediation (F&f#iE#), Institute of International
Experts 2012 5
2. Hong Kong Civi Procedure, Special Release on Mediation (/&R
EERF), Sweet & Maxwel 2011 5 & e e e
3. Hong Kong Mediation Handbook (F&:AfEFM), Sweet & RRRERE
Maxwel 2009 o Cecilia WONG NG Kit-wah
EEM—MEREESSNAMRRTE - RIF2EBUT « AEERNL
BEPNSEARES o
12010 ~ 2011/120124F » EEMESBEMSER ' AREBELE
TSR DERBHEEZEEERTEBNEARER

Mrs Cecilia Wong is currently a council member of the Law Society
of Hong Kong and the Duty Lawyer Service Council. She is a partner
of Kevin Ng & Co,, Solicitors. Her practice area includes matrimonial
law, criminal and civil litigation, mediation and arbitration, probate,
commercial and corporate law.

Mrs Wong has enormous experience in mediation for various matters.
She is a panel mediator and family mediation supervisor of the Family
Court, the Law Society of Hong Kong, Hong Kong Mediation Centre,
and the Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre. At present, she is
member of the Chief Justice’s Working Party on Mediation and member
of Secretary for Justice’s Task Force on Mediation, Mediation Ordinance
subgroup. She was co-author of 3 important books on mediation:

1. "The Book on Mediation”, Institute of International Experts 2012;

2. Hong Kong Civil Procedure, Special Release on Mediation, Sweet &
Maxwell 2011

3. Hong Kong Mediation Handbook, Sweet & Maxwell 2009.

Mrs Wong has consistently taken an active role in the promotion of
mediation in Hong Kong, as well as in various pro-bono government,
professional and community services.

In 2010, 2011 and 2012, Mrs Wong received the Gold award in pro-bono
and community work of the Law Society of Hong Kong in recognition of
her enormous contribution to the profession and the community.
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Mr William Chan was appointed Director of Legal Aid in January 2010.
He joined the Legal Aid Department as a Legal Aid Counsel in April 1987
after leaving private practice in Liverpool, England. He was promoted to
Senior Legal Aid Counsel in December 1989, to Assistant Principal Legal
Aid Counsel in December 1994, to Deputy Principal Legal Aid Counsel in
October 1997, and to Deputy Director of Legal Aid in December 2004. B E A T+

William CHAN Heung-ping
JP
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COUNCIL

The Legal Aid Services Council is responsible for overseeing
the administration of the legal aid services provided by the
Legal Aid Department and the Department is accountable to
the Council for the provision of such services.

The Council may —

a.

formulate policies governing the provision of services
by the Department and give advice on the policy
direction of the Department;

review the work of the Department from time to
time and make such arrangements as are expedient
and proper to ensure the efficient and economical
discharge of the functions and provision of legal aid
services by the Department;

keep under review the services provided by the
Department and the plans for development of the
Department; and

consider and advise on the estimates of expenditure of
the Department.

The Council shall not have the power to direct the
Department on staff matters and the handling of individual
cases by the Department.

The Council is the Chief Executive’s advisory body on the
policy of the Government concerning publicly-funded legal
aid services provided by the Department and shall advise on -



EER . ESE N EEAE

—GOUNGIL, éOMMITi iTlEES ANDIEUNGTIONS

—_—

H\‘.h\ 9

N

Ly M-

L,

RBIERE ARERIER (BH) SRRt  TRELt  TEEXELE  R2ELT SREELT

BHARR OAEREERRBRFSL  RERGKE  ARREL - MREEL  MBAREE - RERLL  EZRBUEZ BRI
Front left to right: Ms Alice CHUNG (Deputy Director of Legal Aid/ Administration), Ms Corinne REMEDIOS, Mr Paul CHAN (Council Chairman),
Ms Virginia CHOI, Mrs Cecilia WONG

Back left to right: Mr William CHAN (Director of Legal Aid), Mr Stephen HUNG, Dr Witman HUNG, Dr L G LAM, Mr Michael DELANEY, Mr Edward LEUNG,
Ms Helen PANG (Council Secretary)

a. EBRER - RBBE - BERBEN  a  the eligibility criteria, scope of services, mode of service

AR RROKEE  LIRER delivery, future plans for improvements, funding
BRYBRNAKEZERNESTE requirements and future development of legal aid

policy;
b. BY—EBINEEREERN

AT R AT 5 & b.  the feasibility and desirability of the establishment of an

~ N independent legal aid authority; and
c. HITHRREAREREZERNEM

B ERIEEIE c.  any other aspect of legal aid which the Chief Executive
may from time to time refer to the Council.
/) 4

EERBNBEE  RERBRATHEE INTEREST GROUPS

BiREER  WEREERBIERME  The Legal Aid Services Council was established to advise
RRE - ARPESFMHEHBAFIE  the Chief Executive on legal aid policy and to supervise the
MEFNEE  BEPHABETHERE  provision of legal aid services provided by the Legal Aid
EEBMEMEERSE - Bk » XFBE  Department. In discharging these functions, the Council
1996 R LIZR - —HEAMERMBL  recognizes that obtaining operational feedback from
ARIBENEERERFMIERLE  stakeholders will assist in the delivery of high quality and
R - R20024F » KRFIL—EIERZR effective legal aid services. Hence, since its establishment in
B ALY AEMEER/NE - DERM  September 1996, the Council has held meetings with legal
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aid panel lawyers to exchange views on different areas of
legal aid work / services. In 2002, a formal structure known
as Interest Group was set up for broad participation by panel
lawyers in reviewing specific areas of legal aid work. In 2003,
the Council invited non-governmental organizations to
join the Interest Groups. Later in the year, District Council
members and academics were also invited. Each Interest
Group is chaired by a Council member. Other Council
members are also welcome to join.

Generally, the terms of reference of an Interest Group are —

a.  to make recommendations to the Council on ways and
means to improve the subject under the purview of the
Interest Group;

b. to report back to the Council feedback and/or
comments in respect of the subject under the purview
of the Interest Group; and

C.  to consider any issue relating to the subject under the
purview of the Interest Group referred by the Council or
other interested parties.

Prior to September 2008, there were three Interest Groups,
namely:

a. Interest Group on Assignment System and Monitoring
of Assigned-out Cases;

b.  Interest Group on Processing of Legal Aid Applications;
and

C.  Interest Group on Scope of Legal Aid.

In September 2008, the Council considered more efficient
to discuss the related issues under the purview of different
interest groups under one roof. The Interest Group on
Assignment System and Monitoring of Assigned-out Cases
therefore merged with the Interest Group on Processing of
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20114 » XRBHBEEB/NMIKE ° Legal Aid Applications. Council member Mr Stephen HUNG
AEEREE  WHELARABNF  was appointed Chairman of the merged interest group
BB - DIEBEE/NER T/E - B/ which was renamed as the Interest Group on Processing,
BB ABREMBRTIEM  BKEERE  Assignment and Monitoring of Assigned-out Cases. At the
BEZ  BEEE (RBEEMEEH  same time, Council member Ms Corinne REMEDIOS was
A ) - SETED - BEEET ~ KA~ appointed Chairman of the Interest Group on Scope of Legal
BA B TEM - REEM &R Ad

M EERE - BIRA - AR ERBEEHRE

fT/EE « 2R S - mEEMB/) [0 2011, a membership drive was launched. Invitation to
04 e ey 2 AN AR EGEREE o A attract more new members was issued with a view to casting

AEEHES - a wider net and to keep up the momentum of interest.
As a result, the Interest Groups grew in membership with
T/ broadened composition. Members include academics (in the

- legal as well as social studies fields), accountants, architects,
CINA=S VR , — . . . .
ARBERFHFRMIL LN &y barristers, a doctor, a dentist, engineers, an environmental

L A )2 B e /T AR o 3 Ut . )

LR B REETR 73:125’]\'5@5 consultant, an information technology consultant, a
=] i, 5 = = : i i i

@ﬁ%?’mﬁ%@x jﬁﬁ%#g”%ﬂf” landscape architect, various members of the social services

EE  ELLFEREREA > OERAR T4 field, solicitors, and surveyors. The two interest groups will

@FERBILENES ~ TEEERBE continue to advise the Council on subject matters under their
YMTAENES ~ TWRENH AR

purview.
Marg THENE L, N TEEEMNS
HivE, ERMIAE- WORKING PARTIES
T /NEA TN B BB TR The Councdil also forms working parties as necessary to study
% o specific issues and make recommendations to the Council or

to plan and organize activities of the Council. During the year
under review, four working parties were in operation. They
were the Working Party on Community Legal Services, the
Working Party on Independence of Legal Aid, the Working
Party on Cross-strait Legal Aid Conference and the Organizing
Committee for Seminar on Legal Aid.

Membership of the Interest Groups and the Working Parties
is at the Appendix.
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REVIEW OF THE SUPPLEMENTARY LEGAL AID
SCHEME

In the course of the discussion of the Administration’s
recommendations from the five-yearly review, the Council
requested the Interest Group on Scope of Legal Aid to also
examine the scope of Supplementary Legal Aid Scheme
(SLAS). After careful deliberation of the report of the Interest
Group, the Council forwarded its recommendations to
the Chief Executive in December 2010. In March 2011,
the Administration, after taking into account the Council’s
advice and recommendations, as well as views from relevant
stakeholders, informed the Council of their position on the
expansion of SLAS and submitted a proposal to the Panel on
Administration of Justice and Legal Services of the Legislative
council (LegCo) for consideration at its meeting on 28 March
2011. The Administration proposed that:

(@ The scope of SLAS be expanded to cover claims of the
following categories, with claim amounts exceeding
$60,000, using an enhanced rate of application fee and
contribution:

professional negligence claims against Certified
Public Accountants, Architects, Registered
Professional Engineers, Registered Professional
Surveyors, Authorized Land Surveyors, Registered
Professional Planners, Landscape Architects and
Estate Agents;
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i HERRERMSIEMEA ii.  claims arising from sale of insurance products; and
DY
iii.  claims against developers in the sale of first-hand
i. BEE-—FEEVERARER residential properties;
RHMER
(b) The application fee and rates of contribution for the
() £x (a) PEFZFTEEERENE new types of cases in item (a) above be revised as
BHBELDEELEREITAT ¢ follows:
R EIEE B S$5,000 ; i.  the application fee be increased to $5,000;

i. HHAEBLEXITAIIAR i.  the interim contribution rate be set at 10% of the
T HTFEERNA 22T B assessed financial resources of the aided person,
EEMEBERT » HRELRE but in any event not less than the current interim
wBEBIE1BE (EEEE) (FF contribution payable by the aided persons under
EERRDEER) 56) 2 SLAS as set out in Regulation 14(a) of the Legal
14(a)&FTET BR7E " EBNETE Aid (Assessment of Resources and Contributions)
TP ABRITESNNPED Regulations (Cap. 91B); and
7E . DKk

jii. ~ the final contribution rate be increased to 20%

ii.  ERASDEE LRI N E G E & of the value of property recovered, and to 15%
EEENE2Z T NEH where a claim is settled prior to delivery of a brief
TE B2 K2 B0 I BE Rl & B A for attendance at trial to counsel;

B RINPEEBLXRAASLZ
+7 () The enhanced application fee and rates of contribution
as set out in item (b) above be also applied to the
(© EX(O)DEATAEINRAFEEN D E existing three types of professional negligence claims

BUHERNZH  TEHARESEHE against the medical, dental or legal professions;

BR - ITRNARE-BEXRR

B ; (d) Employees'claims on appeals from the Labour Tribunal,

regardless of claim amounts, be covered under the
expanded SLAS using the existing rates of application
fee and contribution;

pmrtr

R

(e) A study be conducted on amending the Legal Aid
Ordinance (Cap. 91) with a view to enabling money
claims in derivatives of securities, currency futures
or other futures contracts be covered under the
Ordinary Legal Aid Scheme (OLAS) when fraud,

.
e
ey
s T

.
i
P

¢
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misrepresentation/deception is involved at the time of
purchase; and

The approval of Finance Committee be sought to
inject $100 million into the SLAS Fund to facilitate the
expansion of the scope of SLAS.

The Council was also informed of the Administration’s views

on other proposals to expand SLAS in December 201

1. Their

Views were;

(@)

Derivatives Claims

Noting that structured financial products were
increasingly commonplace in Hong Kong, the
Administration agreed to include money claims in
derivatives of securities, currency futures or other
futures contracts to be covered under the OLAS when
fraud, misrepresentation or deception was involved at
the time of purchase.

Claims against Property Developers by Minority Owners
in respect of Compulsory Sales of Building Units

The Administration did not agree expanding SLAS to
cover this type of claims for the following reasons:

As evidenced in the past rulings of the Lands
Tribunal (Tribunal), the chance of granting a
compulsory sale order was very high. Assuming
that this trend would continue, the chance of a
minority owner granted with legal aid losing the
case and having to bear all the costs was very
high. This would be inconsistent with the self-
financing principle of SLAS.

ii. Very often, a minority owner who appeared
before the Tribunal sought to resist the majority
owner's application for compulsory sale or, if
the application was to be granted, the terms
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RAEZBRENBETE and conditions for the sale. The issues in debate
= ERE "EHEEtE ) BA were often related more to valuation rather than
BENRE - legal matters, and no monetary damages were
involved.
i. REEE VEBEONBHEBEAR

HLHMBEEANARGES Nevertheless, the Administration agreed to continue
B WMERGIEERBE to provide administrative support to owners of old
EBaE - AIRHESNEAEN buildings who might be involved in compulsory sale
Bk T EEMNEELH R for redevelopment cases, such as mediation service,
BEMmMFEEREEER  LAAR outreach support service for elderly owners and
wREEIEEE - enhanced public education

mWmufA o BEREEEEERMET (©  Claims against Sale of Goods and Provision of Services
XETELRNERZZRMAERA

HlETEUERLET  HINFR The Administration did not agree to expand SLAS to
B LEEXTANEHIES this type of claims because not much contribution
ERE  RIBRABRHE - was expected to be generated from successful cases
since such claims generally involved small amounts of
() HIHERmBIIEHRBENBER money. On the other hand, the litigation costs involved
” R usually far exceeded the value of the damages. One lost
= RIARFI R 5 B R0 A R 1R AR case could have a significant impact on the SLAS Fund
BERRMA " EBatE, o W which had to bear the costs of both sides. Furthermore,
E’EEE %Fﬁfﬁggégﬁtﬁiﬁj‘ ’ the Consumer Council had the Consumer Legal Action
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ?&%ﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁ—ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁa * A Fund to provide assistance in selected cases where
$1¢E‘&§ﬁ ’ Eﬁﬁb EJF%”%%@’E%% significant consumer interests or issues of a substantial
ENHEE  HESHPEER - impact on consumers were involved. It was believed
Lo HEEXRGETHAR that consumer interests in that regard had been taken
BRDES  GHYNEREESE care of

BN HEERERENFERE
- REEE - Atk - HMAEEE  To implement the proposed amendments to Legal Aid
B EEERREET DR - Ordinance for the expansion of OLAS and SLAS, the

» e n Administration gave notice in March 2012 to move a
ERRN2012F3ARIDERRIBESE - proposed resolution at LegCo.

RAEEE—HRER  REBEF (F
BIEBRE) WEZ  LUEKR " E@Es
8|, A "EBhEtEl, MEHE -
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INDEPENDENCE OF LEGAL AID

Apart from advising the Government on legal aid policy,
the Council is also tasked to advise the Chief Executive on
“the feasibility and desirability of the establishment of an
independent legal aid authority”.

As mentioned in the last report, the Working Party on
Independence of Legal Aid [Working Party] was formed
under the Council to plan and steer the consultancy study.
The Working Party was led by Dr L G LAM and comprised
members Dr Witman HUNG, Mr Michael DELANEY and
Mrs Cecilia WONG. In March 2011, the consulting firms/
institutions/ universities that had expressed interest in
undertaking the study were invited to submit proposal. After
considering the proposals, Deloitte Consulting (Hong Kong)
Limited was commissioned to undertake the study on the
feasibility and desirability of establishing an independent
legal aid authority in Hong Kong.

The consultancy agreement with Deloitte was made on 31
October 2011. Since then the Working Party met with the
consultants on a regular basis to discuss the approach and
methodology adopted as well as findings of the study.

To measure the degree of independence, four dimensions
of legal aid independence have been defined. They are
institutional, financial, operational and governance. The
study will cover the findings on the following areas and the
considerations for establishing an independent legal aid
authority:

@ Independence of the Legal Aid Department (LAD);

(b) Independence of legal aid practices in overseas
jurisdictions; and

(c) Stakeholders'perceptions.
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Through literature review, news research and direct
conversations with key stakeholders in the legal aid
administration — including legal practitioners, legislators,
community groups, representatives of Government
departments and public bodies, trade unions, district council
members, reporters, academics, political parties, LAD staff
and Legal Aid Services Council (LASC) members - the
consultants have developed an evidence-based approach
to examine the current level of independence in legal aid
administration, as well as to map stakeholders' expectations
of legal aid independence.

To compare and contrast the identified strengths and
weaknesses in Hong Kong's legal aid administration and
to consider how particular areas can be improved, the
consultants have looked into overseas legal aid practices,
including common law jurisdictions - England & Wales,
Scotland, Northern Ireland, Ireland, New Zealand, Ontario,
and New South Wales, as well as civil law jurisdictions - the
Netherlands and Finland.

Given that it is members of the general public who will
be the key users of legal aid services, the consultants have
solicited their views through a large-scale telephone survey.
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Opinions from the general public who have never used the
LAD's service have been analysed and compared with the
views from existing or previous legal aid service users i.e.
legal aid applicants. Views of legal aid applicants have been
collected through a paper-based survey. Respondents for
both surveys were selected at random.

The consultants submitted the report on preliminary findings
in January 2012 and the interim report in March 2012. The
consultants will prepare the final report after completing the
study.

LEGAL ADVICE TO DETAINEES AT POLICE STATION

At present, there is no legal aid provided to cover the period
after detention but prior to the detainee being brought
before a Magistrate. Almost invariably, a detainee would
be interviewed by the law enforcement agency concerned
during this period and frequently a statement would be
recorded and tendered as evidence at trial.

In view of these circumstances, the Council invited the
Interest Group on the Scope of Legal Aid (IG) to study
whether legal aid should be extended to cover legal
assistance for persons detained by the law enforcement
agencies in Hong Kong (“the Detainee Issue”). The study
included “detainees” not formally arrested but invited to assist
in enquiries.

The IG was chaired by Ms Corinne REMEDIOS. Council
members Mr Michael DELANEY and Dr Witman HUNG also
participated in the discussion on the Detainee Issue. The
IG met on a total of five occasions: 17 November 2009, 6
September 2011, 11 October 2011, 6 December 2011 and
21 February 2012. The IG members participated in the Study
came from a wide spectrum including academics (in the
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SLEEBAZAARBNTR o "HEB/\  legal as well as sodial studies fields), accountants, an architect,
8. 2RIE2009411A17H ~ 20114 barristers, a doctor, a dentist, engineers, an environmental
9H6H ~2011410A11H ~ 20114 consultant, an information technology consultant, a
12A6HM2012F2H21HE4T Y iR landscape architect, various members of the social services
2% SHEZMEN "TEB/NEL KE  field, solicitors, and surveyors. To promote the exchange
ERERZ  BREZ2EHE (MEEFEFEME of information and to encourage proper consultation, the
SMEEE ) ~ A~ EEA C K |G invited the attendance of stakeholders, including the
b~ B4 ~ B 17260~ IRIBEEM ©  Legal Aid Department, Duty Lawyer Service, Hong Kong
BB EER - BiRA - AR ERE  Police Force, Customs and Excise Department, Immigration
SN TIEE ~ EAADAEAD - HIEE  Department, Independent Commission Against Corruption,
EMRRMZBE2EER © "HEi#B/J Hong Kong Bar Association, and the Law Society of Hong
) BB YBEFNE  BEEEEE  Kong, all of whom sent representatives to attend one or more
E - EEEMRE EBEBE - BH  meetings.
BEE - ARE  REAE - BBREM
NeNEBEMemstn » Ky During the discussion, IG members were briefed on the
BREREHE—AHL FE5 - experience in Scotland following the decision of Supreme
Court (the House of Lords) in Cadder v HM Advocate on 25
EwBARES > "TEBNE, KEE  October 2010. In Cadder, the Supreme Court held inter alia
BEEETEES AR (L&) B that the prosecution’s reliance on admissions made by a
20104 10H 258 AR Cadder 55 HM  detainee who had been interviewed by the police, without
Advocate —EBFTIBHIRE - £ access to legal advice before the interview began, could be
Cadder —% @ I ERRBABEIFIZ  incompatible with the detainee’s right to a fair trial. Cadder
RBEBEHESINRREBMRIZLER  highlighted the need for legal aid in Scotland to cover this
7 BREMNBERERBEALIEAREE  period and subsequently legal aid was extended accordingly.
EERAIRMHN  SHEWMBEES  Such decision was also highlighted in the speech made
BIAFERANEFEARER  Cadder — by Professor Alan Paterson, who is the Chairperson of the
ZZEHFERILEBEERMEEN  International Legal Aid Group, at the Cross-Strait Legal Aid
FE - BErHEEEEMRBLALLMEE  Conference organised by the Council in May 2011. Although
#ER - BFREREB IR Alan Paterson  there are differences in the Scottish and the Hong Kong
BIRERBNR201TESABBWMN "ME  procedure upon arrest, Cadder provided sufficient impetus
Mt = EEBM S L REFHEIRKL  for the IG to critically examine the Hong Kong Position.
EEAR  BREFRBENEBEAHRE
B BFAR ' B Cadder —%22 @ik  1he |G was given to know that although Hong Kong has
NGB SRR E ST - BT 2 retained the common law right of silence, a person may be
SIHIHEED S o “invited” to attend a police station and/or asked to “assist
the police in enquiries” without being informed of his right
FEENE ) RREX - BBB|NRRE  tosilence. A caution may not be administered from the
TEBEEIIHE  B—@ "EE&, BE  outset of questioning and by the time the law enforcement
B/ "HBESREE WAL A officer is required to administer the caution. The person may
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unwittingly have incriminated himself. Hence there are many
criminal cases where defendants challenge the voluntariness
of a statement taken upon interrogation, thus prolonging the
trial and increasing costs.

To enable an in depth consideration as to feasibility, scope
and delivery of legal advice to detainees, a comparative study
of the provision of legal aid for legal assistance to detainees
in five overseas jurisdictions namely England and Wales,
Scotland, Taiwan, New Zealand and Ontario, Canada was
commissioned by the IG.

Having taken into account all relevant issues, the IG
concluded that legal aid for legal assistance was necessary
to protect the rights of detainees. They considered that
the provision for legal assistance should equally apply to
those persons “invited” to assist in investigations without
formal arrest. Although a consensus was not reached on the
extent of such assistance, (particularly whether aid should
extend not only to legal advice but also to representation
of the detainee during the interview), IG members were
unanimously in favour of setting up a pilot scheme to
extend legal aid accordingly. In view of the concerns
expressed by the law enforcement agencies and the possible
operational difficulties, the IG considered that an incremental
introduction would be a practical solution to be adopted by
the pilot scheme.

A report will be prepared by the IG after soliciting views from
its members on the proposals. The Council will consider the
report and make recommendations to the Chief Executive as
appropriate.
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COUNCIL'S WORK PLAN FOR 2011/2012

The Council's work plan for 2011/2012 included the following
activities:

a. Scope of Legal Aid

The Interest Group on Scope of Legal Aid finished its
study on the Review of the Supplementary Legal Aid
Scheme (SLAS) and the Administration has put forth
ARE2011E201256ET ﬂE its recommendations to the Legislative Council in
E'I' .%J March 2011. The Interest Group will look into other
outstanding propositions, including the possibility and
desirability in providing legal advice to arrested persons

AE2011E201 248 T e8I A at Police stations to help protect their legal right.
T

b. Independence of Legal Aid

% ERd The Council will conduct a Consultancy Study on
M EIESEEE NG, (T8 the Feasibility and Desirability of establishing an
TEB/NE ) =R T T IEEER Independent Legal Aid Authority, and the Working Party

SSRGS, B BT on Consultancy Study on Independence of Legal Aid,
E1E2011E3 S HESESY chaired by Dr L G LAM, has invited interested parties to
Ee . TER/NE, SFEEME submit proposals. The study will commence by the end
S, ARG SHE AR EE of 2011. The Council will monitor the progress of this
R 2R AR 7R A0 AT AT A ETEAE » 1YL project and provide assistance, where necessary.

R o
oot RS ¢. Community Legal Services Centre

b. % f AV
RIRBIIB I The Working Party led by Dr L G LAM has laid down

KB AR — BB R ES the study approach for Community Legal Services.
I8 B 00 BT 47 M % AT B M o 1T RE R A After gathering information about the needs in the
=, mMREBTESIEN T community and the current services provided by
EEBNBIM | TE/NED RS various non-governmental organisations (NGOs), it
B IR B - g would analyze the current spectrum of services, identify
HA@7r2071 1 EAEER » KRR the gap between the provision and the requirement
B S BB - WML E RS and make recommendations on how to enhance the
#Bh o service to fill the gap.
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Unrepresented litigants

The rising number of unrepresented individuals in court
has given rise to a concern about access to justice. The
Council will look into the matter and consider what
response would be appropriate.

Assistance to employees in labour dispute

Concerns have been expressed by various trade unions
and legislators about the difficulties faced by low
income employees in labour dispute. The Council will
study the issue and formulate an appropriate response.

Seminar on Mediation

The Council has held two seminars on legal aid
entitled “Legal Aid and Livelihood”. The first was held
in November 2006 and a second one in March 2008.
A third seminar on “Mediation” was held in April 2010.
The seminar provides a platform for exchange of
views on provision of legal aid services in Hong Kong
and in particular, to raise the awareness of users or
practitioners in certain specific area. All seminars were
very well received. In view of the favourable response,
the Council will hold another seminar in 2012.

Cross-strait Legal Aid Conference

It is generally recognised that international conference
on legal aid provides a very useful platform for legal
aid policy makers, administrators and practitioners
to review and reflect on their legal aid policy and
administration. Such occasion will also provide an
opportunity to network with other legal aid authorities
and researchers. The Council will host a cross-strait
four-region legal aid conference in Hong Kong on 27
May 2011 with the participation of Mainland China,
Taiwan and Macau. The objective of the conference
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9. MFOMERIEBMEE is to promote dialogue and foster exchange amongst

| 2 o ] R e 45 2 < legal aid policy makers, practitioners and researchers in
\_’31}\ = [~ B ’f%f Eﬁﬁ”f% the four places with a view to providing quality legal aid
ARERE N FEEBENEBASMN

services to those in need.
HEE > BETY—EIEBERANF
B R MERRIERAEBRMN  h,  Interest Groups
BB > ST RS EAR

BRI MRS AT IS A S EESTHEAS o The Council has formed two Interest Groups (i)
ABE2011E5827THERTY —@E Scope of Legal Aid and (i) Processing, Assignment
MENHEERS S B3 THR and Monitoring of Assigned-out Cases to assist in its
A~ S  RFPNEBNRER work. Members were drawn from the legal profession,

n SEEETS(EEMm# LR representatives of non-governmental organizations,
REE REENTRAERER members of District Councils, academics, social

T BEEEATERERBENEE workers and other professionals. In February 2011, a
AR o membership drive has been launched. Invitation to
attract more new members will be issued with a view to

h. Bl casting a wider net and to keep up the momentum of

interest. The Council will continue to maintain dialogue
with members of the Interest Groups to seek their
views on legal aid and related matters as and when

AR T MERBNE— R
B EEEBMA, A1 EERE
BRERESA I ERE N, - !
REHEREEAT « ERATES appropriate.
RE BHEEHRE 8% #T
MEMEE A LR o 2201 16

i.  International Legal Aid Group Conference

2R AEBBEEEB/NEKE - ® The Council participated in the biennial International
MELZAREFRBINALIA - LU Legal Aid Group Conference in 2005, 2007 and 2009.
FEBNENTHFE AR EEEB These conferences provide a useful forum in discussing
NMAKERFTRIIME - TEER the fundamentals of legal aid, in comparing legal
fRERMMAEERE MR RE aid systems and in sharing experience. The Council
MER - will participate in the International Legal Aid Group

) Conference to be held in Finland in June 2011,
[ Bl RE 2R b AT

AEE 2820054 « 2007TEM
2009F BRI E 2R BB & T
g  EEMAIEREY —EER
NEE » EFWEERBNERR
A » KB AERERFIER MK
- ARS2ME2011ECBRSHE
BITHER AR BEBMTSE -
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CRIMINAL LEGAL AID FEES SYSTEM

The Legal Aid Department ("LAD") engages counsel and
solicitors in private practice as defence lawyers in criminal
legal aid cases. The scale of fees payable to these lawyers as
well as the fee assessment mechanism are prescribed in Rule
21 of the Legal Aid in Criminal Cases Rules (Cap. 221D) under
the Criminal Procedure Ordinance (Cap. 221).

Pursuant to the decision of the Legislative Council Finance
Committee in October 1992, the fees are subject to review
by the Administration on a biennial basis. The Finance
Committee also delegated in June 2003 the authority
to approve future adjustments to any of the fees to the
Administration, provided that the extent of adjustment is
no greater than the movement of the Consumer Price Index
(©) (CPI(Q)) during the reference period. In conducting the
biennial reviews, the Administration takes into account
mainly inflation/deflation during the reference period and
whether there has been difficulty in engaging the services of
counsel and solicitors.

From the 2010 biennial review, it is noted that the CPI(C) for
the reference period (i.e. July 2008 to July 2010) has increased
by 1.6%. The Administration has therefore proposed to
adjust the fees upward by 1.6% in accordance with the
level of inflation during the reference period. The impact of
economic changes after July 2010 will be reflected in the
next biennial review.
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BRy ) BHAR  EREEHEMEZE InAprl 2011, the Home Affairs Bureau informed the Council
HREEBNBEDRR - LUER (FIZEZE  that the Administration was in the course of drafting the
HREREBIARR) BAMEME21E - M= Legal Aid in Criminal Cases (Amendment) Rules to amend
EAEEDEREIN.6%WEZEFT  Rule 4 and Rule 21 of the Legal Aid in Criminal Cases Rules
BXBETHZRE - ZLRAMBETHEME  (LACCR). The proposed +1.6% adjustment to the criminal
FARFRAZEGHTE - BIRRILE  legal aid fees would be incorporated in the Amendment
BFA 0 WAE2012E3A 48K - B4R Rules. Such Amendment Rules were subsequently made by
F2MENETTABAT * the Criminal Procedure Rules Committee with the approval
of the Legislative Council and came into operation in March
2012. Details of the amendment to Rules 4 and 21 are as
follows:

BARAYIERT

(RIERMEEERERRAD) F455I 9B
ERGAESEAZEDNER  #9%  Amendments to Rule 4
ANBBBRESENEESE - BE
B4 (1) BRUMPBIONEEHEMIER  Rule 4 of the LACCR sets out the list of circumstances in
EERER - ST EREGRHE - BFENH  which legal aid in criminal cases may be granted, subject to
M EEFERERRF LR LSFEME  the applicant’s eligibility on means and merits. In the past,
BERF - BEEFAMEZES - /A Rule 4(1) did not expressly cover proceedings where after an
EH EsFEES KRB EREEMN EFE  acquittal or discharge, a reservation, reference or an appeal
> AREFRHES  WAIEBRTIEEE  is made to the Court of Appeal (CA) and the Court of Final
B o Appeal (CFA). With the amendments to Rule 4, legal aid can
be granted to a person regardless of whether he/she has
been convicted of an offence in an appeal case heard in the
CA and the CFA.

E21{ZAMERT

TRAHEEZEEDERANBESR B

FEMBEEEEXEEREETNEN  Amendments to Rule 21
RELEENEEERDEGHNINER

AIEV IR B Z & - BRI £ 21N E  In the course of reviewing the criminal legal aid fees, the
B RRENEMNEEERERFE  Administration has reached an agreement with the two

B R - EXNT legal professional bodies on the revised fee structure and the
. fees payable to assigned solicitors handling criminal legal
(a) ZEfRILAE aid cases. The purpose of the amendments to Rule 21 is to

EETRT ) RABAT 2 EEER Improve the payment structure of the criminal legal aid fee
AT AT T /e » 2 System. Themain features are set out below —
REBMNKERZ "8— 1 B9 - EK
BITNERRET » ERILAENG
N S TR R T E - Before the revision, solicitors and counsel were paid
a fee for preparation of the case for trial or appeal,
irrespective of the time spent up to the first day of trial

(@) Preparatory work
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(b) EEFBWERE or appeal. Under the revised fee structure, preparation

\ PR — work will be remunerated according to the time
BE - VEREMESLRTRE g

EALTH TEBER, - £5E required.
FIRBET - 2B AIWEUR/\E  (b) Rationalization of fee items

ATEMNEREN - ,
In the past, only counsel was paid a “‘conference fee”
c) REECERNEHETEREAR with the legally aided person(s). Under the revised
BERE structure, a conference fee will also be payable to

solicitors on an hourly basis.

EEETR » M ERMNERZ

EETHEEREZEHET#%2E () Enhanced transparency for the fee setting and re-
B o FERMERTHOZRET » BRI =4 determination basis

N2 ENEBEER @ DIKFIEEE
A ERSEATM TERRE
A ERBERNER - SRR
RAITE AR AR 2B - LUR
EEAREEBER  MAABR
MERT  EREFEEMREN
ER - ELRBEERENELRE

Before the revision, the fee payable to an assigned
lawyer was assessed after the work was done and
the case concluded. Under the revised structure, the
classification of a particular case and hence the rates, as
well as the required preparation time will be assessed
beforehand and marked on the brief when making the
assignment. Assigned lawyers will be allowed to view

HYBHREE - the bundle(s) before accepting assignments with a
(d) ECEEESREEHELET L RS%E view to agreeing the fees to be paid. They can also seek
] a re-determination of the agreed fees if circumstances
warrant this. These measures are designed to enhance
IERIEETHERLERT (PR the transparency of the fee structure.
Sfﬂzg Zﬁ ?)\] ERNEE LIRRE (d) Abolition of existing statutory cap or limit on fees

Under the revised fee structure, the statutory cap or
limit on fees payable to instructing solicitors have been
abolished.

UM ES B EE A RFDR
AR AR R A5

&t &l TWO-YEAR PILOT SCHEME TO PROVIDE LEGAL
ADVICE FOR LITIGANTS IN PERSON

ME - AR ERMARFRAYL

BEREANEHESREE - HRNR , . . .
A S S22 BT 4 2 22 A R0 S 48 B In recent years, the increasing number of litigants .|r? perspn
(LIPs) has posed a challenge to the Hong Kong civil justice
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system. Few LIPs know the court rules and procedures. This
causes them, the court and other parties in the proceedings
difficulties in progressing and trying the case. The difficulties
generally faced by LIPs include -

(@)

(b)

Lack of knowledge of the rules of procedural and
substantive law;

Lack of knowledge as to how to present their case at
the interlocutory stages and at the trial;

A sense of inequality and being disadvantaged where
the other party has legal representation; and

In some cases a sense of grievance induced by
perceived judicial irritation at having to deal with an
unrepresented litigant unfamiliar with the law and court
procedures.

Members of the Legislative Council, the Hong Kong Bar
Association (“Bar Association"), the Law Society of Hong Kong
(“Law Society"), the Judiciary and other stakeholders have
proposed that legal advice be given to LIPs.

In April 2011, the Administration informed the Council that
they planned to provide free legal advice to LIPs by means
of a new scheme running on a two-year pilot basis. In
November 2011 and February 2012, the Administration
submitted papers to the AJLS Panel briefing them on
the operational framework of the pilot scheme. The
Administration aims to launch the scheme in partnership
with the two legal professional bodies and with support from
members of other profession and the interested law firms/
chambers. The objective of the scheme is to provide legal
advice on procedural matters to assist LIPs who cannot afford
private legal services and who lack knowledge of their rights
and responsibilities. Specifically, the Scheme will be -

(@)

available to those who have commenced or are parties
to legal proceedings in the District Court, Court of First
Instance and Court of Appeal of the High Court, and
Court of Final Appeal;
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(b) available to those who have not been granted legal aid;
(¢ served on a first-come-first-served basis; and

(d) providing advice on civil procedural matters only for
different stages of the proceedings.

The LIPs office will be headed by a Centre-in-charge and
supported by one full-time or two part-time resident
lawyer(s) and community lawyers, who should have at least
two years' post-qualification experience and join the Scheme
in their personal capacity or in the capacity of a law firm (i.e.
in the firm's name) providing service on a pro bono basis. The
office is also supported by a para-legal and a clerical assistant
providing secretarial and administrative support.

The Administration informed the Council that the proposed
scheme was supported by the AJLS Panel after deliberation
at its meeting on 27 February 2012.

CERTIFICATE BY COUNSEL

In April 2002, the Council implemented an assistance
scheme to provide a legal aid appellant who has passed the
means test with a free certificate by counsel without which
he cannot seek a review of DLA's refusal to grant legal aid
under Section 26A of the Legal Aid Ordinance. Details of the
scheme and its operation have always been set out in annual
reports of the Council.

As at 31 March 2012, the Scheme had 78 counsel (46 civil
and 32 criminal) and 48 solicitors (37 civil and 11 criminal) on
the panel. In respect of the applications approved during the
year, the Council made a total of 37 assignments. Details are
as follows -
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FIZ=ZEH Criminal Cases

P ] 260
Counsel Solicitors
(2) BRTBHFARDHBMEEN 31 31
Assignment to panel lawyers according to applicants' nomination
(b) BRTHBARLNIFAMEN (BN ERFRERRFBBA) 0 0
Assignment to non-panel lawyers (who have represented the
applicants in the appeal court) according to applicants’nomination
(© RUmm s NEIK T A MR 0 0
Assignment to panel lawyers by rotation
ENESL L 31 31
Total assignment
REZEH Civil Cases
K1EED 12EM
Counsel Solicitors
(a) DX FPFEANRBHBMELD 6 6
Assignment to panel lawyers according to applicants' nomination
b) BRTHBARBAIERMEM (HBR EREAKREBA) 0 0
Assignment to non-panel lawyers (who have represented the
applicants in the appeal court) according to applicants' nomination
(© Llwm s NEIR T A MERAE 0 0
Assignment to panel lawyers by rotation
DREMHBH 6 6

Total assignment

FE2011EFE4R1EE2012F3A31H#  From 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012, there were 53 (41
B HEEL3R (A1IRMERMALI2R aiminal and 12 civil) applications. Of these, 37 (31 criminal
REZEMF) Bsm - B ' 375R (3157 and 6 civil) applications were approved and 16 (10 criminal
BEHROCREBERMN) BHFEEH# - 1658 and 6 civil) applications were rejected.

(10 ERGEROREEEN) BEH

1B o In respect of the 37 approved applications, 6 (criminal)
certificates by counsel stating that the applicants had
MZITREHRNERTE - EFER6M (FMIF  reasonable prospect of success and 31 certificates by counsel
Ef) REMBPAZHAPFZABTEE (25 criminal and 6 civil) stating that the applicants did not
#We FREE LIR30 (255"MZ=ZE  have reasonable prospect of success in their intended
HRERRERMY) BARBARMILE  appeals to the Court of Final Appeal were issued.

ER R A LRI RS IR E KT
For the 6 criminal cases which were certified by counsel

ERZORBEREMERERABSEHE  to have reasonable prospect of success, the Legal Aid
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SLHFFENHERYG  EFEBEBERE  Department (LAD) had decided to grant legal aid in all of the
R EIREAEIR - cases.

201021 TFEER201TE12FEMMET A table showing the statistics in 2010/11 and 2011/12 is

FiZRAT appended below -
2010F4818Z 2011F4R1HE
20113831 ARERIRE 201253831 HREMSRE
Applications Received from Applications Received from
1.4.2010t0 31.3.2011 1.4.2011 to 31.3.2012
M= RE  #EEt iE=S RE  #EEt
Criminal  Civil Total Criminal Civil Total
1. B&E

Applications

(@) #tf approved 44 7 51 31 6 37

(b) $B#8 rejected 13 11 24 10 6 16

(c) HA1E aborted 1 0 1 0 0 0

85T Total 58 18 76 41 12 53

2. REMZERE
Certificate by Counsel
(@) BRE#E LHFEE 5 0 5 6 0 6
has reasonable prospect of success
(b) EEERE THFFE 39 7 46 25 6 31
has no reasonable prospect of success
#&5t Total 44 7 51 31 6 37

3. AREEE LREGENRN

Cases with reasonable prospect of success

(@) WEEREBERBERRERIER
=B

~
(@)
~

6* 0 6

legal aid granted upon review by
Director of Legal Aid (DLA)

(b) WERBERBRRIERIEM 0 0 0 0 0 0
EERY
legal aid not granted upon review
by DLA

(© EmAREBRF 1 0 1 0 0 0
withdrawn by applicant

@5t Total 5 0 5 6 0 6

*BRE—REGREIEERE  BHEFFREERIVL

including one case originally granted with legal aid but discharged by DLA afterwards
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(@) HEHEBHE RS T30.3% (A
2010/11TEEMTERTHRE
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The statistics for the two years reveal that -

(@ the total number of applications has decreased by
30.3% (from 76 in 2010/11 to 53 in 2011/12), with a
decrease of 29.3% in criminal cases (from 58 in 2010/11
to 41 in 2011/12) and 33.3% in civil cases (from 18 in
2010/11t0 12in 2011/12);

(b) the percentage of cases certified by counsel to have
reasonable prospect of success has increased from 9.8%
in 2010/11 to 16.2% in 2011/12, with increase mainly
came from criminal cases as there were no civil cases
certified by counsel to have reasonable prospect of
success in 2010/11 and 2011/12; and

(©) the percentage of cases where legal aid was granted
by LAD in the light of the counsel certificates is 100% in
both 2010/11 and 2011/12.

In respect of applications received in 2011/12, HK$1.104
million was committed as fees for counsel and solicitors for
providing the certificates. Details are as follows -

BHRAHE BSRIRAN ARGERA SIRGN FHEEA BH
KEEEHEHA fast L= fast g
Number of Counsel Total Solicitor Total
Cases Approved Fee/Case Counsel Fee Fee/Case Solicitor Fee Total Fee
== 31 $15,000 $465,000 $9,000 $279,000 $744,000
Criminal
R= 6 $40,000 $240,000 $20,000 $120,000 $360,000
Civil
b 37 $705,000 $399000  $1,104,000
Total
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THE GOVERNMENT

The Council maintains regular contact with the
Administration, an important stakeholder of legal aid.

In April 2011, the Home Affairs Bureau provided the Council
with copies of two papers the Administration submitted
to the AJLS Panel in the same month. One is about the
progress of legislative amendments on the criminal legal
aid fees system in which, among other things, the proposed
adjustment to criminal legal aid fees was incorporated.
The other one is a paper briefing Panel members on the
measures the Administration has implemented and intends
to implement to improve the provision of legal information
and free legal advice to members of the public. In August
2011, as a follow up to the views of the Council in respect of
the improvements proposed by the Administration following
the five-yearly review of the criteria for assessing the financial
eligibility of legal aid applicants, the Chairman wrote to the
Home Affairs Bureau expressing the Council's views that the
age requirement proposed for elderly legal aid applicants to
be entitled to a disregard in their savings in calculating the
financial eligibility limit of OLAS should be further lowered to
55 and urging the Administration to take this into account
in future review. In December 2011, the Bureau informed
the Council that the Administration had submitted a paper
to the AJLS Panel informing Panel members of the progress
of amendments to the Legal Aid Ordinance and Regulations
in respect of the OLAS and expansion of the SLAS, and
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REERETBNEMEZNEE © reporting the Administration’s views on other proposals
RBRIVBHARABEEMARFAA  to expand SLAS. The Bureau also informed the Council of
REEEZARBNARTEINEESR  the operational framework of a pilot scheme to provide
B E2012F3A » KFEWEI—4;  legal advice for litigants in person. The paper briefing Panel
TEBRZEGZEH/NABTBIMEST  members on the revised operational framework of the
EERENXH - RA  REBEEBAAE  proposed scheme was provided to the Council in March
B MEERIIEERHTES  RTE 2012 In the same month, the Bureau informed the Council
FE—IREE - LBMBEEALE that they had given LegCo notice to move a resolution to
STEIFIEB ST BIANAGIERT - implement the amendments to the Legal Aid Ordinance for
the expansion of OLAS and SLAS.

S i
INTEREST GROUPS

RIEHZRREFRERR  BEH

ETERRBNSRENEEERE ©  Operational feedback from stakeholders will assist in the
KRBE1996FIARILIK - —HEEE  delivery of high quality and effective legal aid services.
fREEEL AR E EmEEEBARBERIR  Since its establishment in September 1996, Council has
TR 1£2002-034F/@ » AFHIL—E held meetings with legal aid panel lawyers to exchange
EREE - UERMEMAIEEZSE  views on different area of legal aid issues. During 2002-
ABEWNIIF  RRINBHEFBATHEBEI 03, a formal structure was set up for broad participation
ABBBNE - 7820044 - BEEHEEZE by panel lawyers. Coundil also invited non-governmental
BREEGKEMESE - £20114F * A/HE  organisations to join the Interest Groups. In 2004, District
BEEB/NAKE  ABREZEFE I Coundl members and academics were also invited. In 2011,
MBELARFABNATIOA » HEBFEE a2 membership drive was launched. Invitation to attract more
NERTAF - EEB/NERBABRAME new members was issued with a view to casting a wider
net and to keep up the momentum of interest. As a result,
the Interest Groups grew in membership with broadened
composition. Members includes academics (in the legal as
well as social studies fields), accountants, architects, barristers,
a doctor, a dentist, engineers, an environmental consultant,
an information technology consultant, a landscape architect,
various members of the social services field, solicitors, and
surveyors. In October 2011, a briefing cum cocktail reception
was held to let the new Interest Group members have a
better understanding of the work of the Council and Legal
Aid Department, and to enable them to get a grasp with
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the subjects and related issues of concern. In the following
months, those who have joined the Interest Group on Scope
of Legal Aid were invited to attend meetings for discussion
on the issue of provision of legal aid for legal assistance to
detainees. Altogether four meetings were held between
September 2011 and February 2012.

STAKEHOLDERS OF LEGAL AID

For the discussion on the issue of provision of legal aid for
legal assistance to detainees, key stakeholders of the issue
including the Legal Aid Department, Duty Lawyer Service,
Hong Kong Police Force, Customs and Excise Department,
Immigration Department, Independent Commission
Against Corruption, Hong Kong Bar Association and the
Law Society of Hong Kong were also invited to participate
in the discussion. Apart from understanding the existing
operational procedures and arrangement to handle the
matter, the Interest Group members were also briefed on
the concerns and difficulties that may be encountered
by the relevant government departments if the legal aid
service proposed by the Interest Group is implemented thus
enabling the Interest Group to consider in more details of the
matter before making recommendations to the Council.

On the study of community legal services, in order to enrich
the information on the services currently provided by non-
governmental organisations and community groups and the
need of legal services in the community, the Working Party
visited the Po Leung Kuk in September 2011 and met some
District Council members in February 2012.
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2B R LB MEETING WITH THE LEGAL AID SOCIETY, TAIWAN

£2012F4H3H » AEBIRMEEER A delegation from the Legal Aid Society, Taiwan visited the
e (T8 "wHe, ) sAAERIZER  Council on 3 April 2012 to exchange views on issues of
B E% ﬁﬁ!@tﬂ’]%%t?&ﬁi% interest. The Legal Aid Society (LAS) is a civil organisation
e —EERENRAEMB - E7E®R  inTaiwan. It aims at providing necessary legal assistance to
1 WEREEERBTHREAM « F4% ~  people of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
RPN EE MM AL LM%E‘WMF?T in the hope that their legal right in the four places could be
@i’mE’J SRR WEKEEREE E ~ protected. Its members include judges, prosecutors and
BRE - BZMEALT  UEBFUELE  solicitors. Their participation in the work of LAS is completely
BEMIIE - MFEAHMMIRM » {8  voluntary. They promote legal aid services in the four places
HETHBEEREBRE - Z2IFAARBMET  through visits and exchange of views. The delegation that
BEXEEEREERE  WERMEM visited the Council included Chairman of the Society, its
TtHREE  MARIEMKERR/RME  Secretary and seven other members. Representatives from
TREAFEST  FEEEPNEER  the Coundil included the Chairman and Council Member, Dr
(BEREBR) RERLLTBERE © Witman HUNG. The Assistant Director of Legal Aid (Policy
HEEHY » AXBEEEBHBRFER - & Development), Ms Juliana OY CHAN was also present. At
FREDRFEAFMEMNERMEBEFZRERF  the meeting, matters concerning the eligibility criteria for
FREAXMER ° legal aid, costs of legal aid applicant and the application
procedures were discussed.
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CROSS-STRAIT LEGAL AID CONFERENCE

The Legal Aid Services Council
held its first Cross-strait Legal Aid
Conference on Friday, 27 May 2011.

The theme of the Conference was
“Legal Aid Services in Four Places’"
The Conference aimed at providing
a unique forum for sharing and
learning about legal aid practices in
Mainland China, Taiwan, Macau and
Hong Kong.

The Council was honoured to have Professor Alan Paterson,
Chairperson of the International Legal Aid Group, and the
Honourable Chief Justice Geoffrey MA Tao-li, Chief Justice
of the Court of Final Appeal as keynote speakers. Professor
Paterson introduced to the Conference the trend and
development of legal aid, the pros and cons of different
legal aid programmes and models adopted by various
jurisdictions, the challenges for legal aid and access to justice
for the 21st century and the way forward. The Honourable
Chief Justice Geoffrey Ma delivered a speech on “Access to
the Quality of Justice” The Council was also honoured to
have the Honourable Mr Justice Johnson LAM Man-hon,
Judge of the Court of First Instance of the High Court to make
a luncheon speech. He delivered a speech on “Development
of Mediation in Hong Kong'.

Other speakers of the Conference included the Minister of
Department of Legal Aid of Ministry of Justice, Mainland
China; the Chairperson of Legal Aid Foundation, Taiwan;
Director of Legal Affairs Bureau, Macau; Assistant Director
of Legal Aid Department, Hong Kong and members of the
Council; etc.

The Conference was well received. It received a total of 130
registrations comprising officials of legal aid authorities, legal
aid practitioners, academics, and representatives of non-
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MEESEM » £1302KEFRBEA  governmental organizations of Mainland China, Taiwan,
o~ B ORFIMEBNEREEER  Macau and Hong Kong. To record the meaningful event, a
K& IEZEREIFEE - 2EMFBHT  booklet entitled “Cross-strait Legal Aid Conference May 2011
BERRETSM - ALEEBBEESE  was produced.

WEE  AREINE—AKELE "TRE

oA REN R L NET -

INTERNATIONAL LEGAL AID GROUP CONFERENCE
BIFERBBMEE2011 201

KEREMREBELIRERARHEE T

ANARSEMBEERITHEEEEM  Council Member Dr Lee George LAM, on behalf of the

BAsTE 2011 o Council, attended the International Legal Aid Group (ILAG)
Conference 2011 held in Helsinki, Finland in June.

BRI EREBAE 199 2FEHEHEBNG . ,
B A BB Alan PatersonZiS g ILAG was established in 1992 by Professor Alan Paterson of

v B EHERERB -+ NERRLY Strathcllyde.Unive.rsity, Sgotland. IF is a network of legal aid
SEEENER AR ENES RN speoa‘hsts IﬂC|L.Jd.Ing ch|ef exec.:ut|v.es. and managers frgm
FRESAEE HFEEEanEs legal a|d‘cor.nm|55|ons, high rar.wkmg civil .ser'vanFs anq leading
BEERNERE  EEo2SRBREE acgdemlcs in over 24.countr|e.s. |'FS mlsspn is to improve
RS 5 2 TR A 2 2 IR IS O B S AR ewdence.-based po||cy'—mak|.ng in thg field of pgverty
oo g8 T ST A S 5 LI LU !egal ser.V|ces through dlscus.5|on a.nd dialogue relating to
BENESE B ERRTEE |ntemat|o'na| Qevelopmentls in pohcy ar?d re.se‘ath.' I.LAG
A DS R R E R S focgses primarily orlw the partlcular issues raised in jurisdictions
BELHEESEE  BATEEERE V\./hlch'have estabhshed 'hlghl'y de\{eloped .syste'mé of Iegal
A B TS & T B T aid. It is now expanding its brief to include jurisdictions with
B o less developed systems, particularly in jurisdictions close to
its conference sites.
EFAREBEMERT—RHE | oG holds conference biennially. For reasons of
RHNER HHGRRERALS manageability, the conferences are open only by invitation.
5 - ARESM2005 ~ 2007RH2009F 1o coyncil participated in the 2005, 2007 and 2009
WSS 2011 EMBFEMABREAR  onferences. The Heisinki Conference 2011 is the fourth
RFEMREGEBAREBERESEE © | Ac conference to which the Council was invited. Such
R HRB2OBARABOANRET " nference brought together 86 representatives including
BREBRHEESREREDHTE N policy makers and researchers in the legal aid field from 26
o RYBNBRERBIERTE  ontries, Apart from the introduction of legal aid work in
e & LNGER T H B S Sl different jurisdictions, there was discussion on the increasing
RILERE - URERRBERREN prominence of legal aid in arbitration and mediation, as well

BRI as the importance of quality assurance in legal aid services.
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AREZ LB ATTENDANCE AT COUNCIL MEETINGS

201 E12FE » XREBRA YIRE  The Council has held 9 meetings in the year 2011/2012.
& SREHRFERIFRNT Attendance rates of members are set out in the table below:

R ERAY e

Meetings Attended Attendance Rate

BRIZE 54 Mr Paul CHAN 9 100%
FEEEL L MsVirginia CHO 7 78%
KBRS Mr Michael DELANEY 7 78%
REIE(S R4 Mr Stephen HUNG 4 44%
HEREEE Dr Witman HUNG 9 100%
MEREE L DrLee George LAM 5 56%
RERESAE MrEdward LEUNG 5 56%

Z3% 2+ Ms Corinne REMEDIOS 6 67%
ERBZEL T Mrs Cecilia WONG 3 33%
REEBIEER Director of Legal Aid 9 100%
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BRIEFING CUM COCKTAIL RECEPTION

Members of Council’s Interest Groups (IG) have, over the
years, contributed selflessly their invaluable time and effort
to assist the Council in supervising the provision of legal
aid services and advising the Chief Executive on legal aid
policy. To express our gratitude to the IG members for their
contributions and to welcome the new comers who joined
the IGs during the membership drive launched in 2011 as
well as to help them to have a better understanding of the
work of the Council and Legal Aid Department and to get a
grasp with the subject and other related issues quicker, the
Council held a briefing cum cocktail reception on 13 October
2011.

’;'ﬁ' fl\'gﬁ EEEE)E%* The Council looks forward to working more closely with the

two Interest Groups to further improve services.

BEREZER  AREBNEKE—EH
RBARBITEE FZRERE > I
EREDBRATHRRERHEZZD
BE ST HESNEEMNES -
ABE2011E108130  B177—1@
BNEEEEREAEEEBNEKE -
BRY RS F YRR - DIREER
201V IBENEEBNERES - B3
LRI A R E R IR E TIER
K KGMAEREEGRZEN
HADMERERAR °

ARPZHERERB/NIEEAF  #
ENEDBREERE -
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COMMUNITY RELATIONS

To enhance public awareness of legal aid services and
promote the Council’s first Cross-strait Legal Aid Conference,
the Council met media representations in May 2011 and
briefed them on the objective and details of the Conference.

In response to government’s call for openness and
transparency of advisory and statutory bodies, the Council
continues to upload unclassified minutes and papers of
Council meetings, and annual reports of the Council onto
the Council's website. The Council's submissions to the Chief
Executive and responses to matters on which the Council
is consulted have also been uploaded. The presentation
materials of the Cross-strait Legal Aid Conference held in May
2011 were also placed on the Council's website for access by
the public and legal aid practitioners.
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BT R STAFF AND FINANCE

BURERIN2005F3H9H# 20054  The Administration introduced the Statue Law (Miscellaneous
BSOER GEIEARE)RBPIESR) 222230%  Provisions) Bill 2005 to the Legislative Council on 9 March
2 BEHREREEET OEERMERBERE 2005 to, among other things, amend the Legal Aid Services
By - BFEERBTEREILEE  Coundl Ordinance to confer power on the Council to employ
ESHN (BFERAN) WD - staff and to enter into contracts, including leases.

BZE201243H31H0 » MEEAMMEI At 31 March 2012, two clerical posts were filled by the
EBMUBAARRBENWELEMR - MEBA  Coundl's own staff and four posts were filled by civil servants
B EAATEEEME - seconded from the Government.

R0 BI2EEXRBUBUFWERIMEEI  The subvention received from the Government for 2011-12
FRyB1E5,744,097TT - 2EMSTERB®E  was $5,744,097. Total expenditure of the year was $4,779,311.
4,779,3117¢C °
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

| have audited the financial statements of the Legal Aid
Services Council set out on pages X to XX, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 March 2012, and the income
and expenditure account, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Legal Aid Services Council's Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The Legal Aid Services Council is responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with the Legal Aid Services Council
Ordinance (Cap. 489) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, and for such internal control as the Legal Aid
Services Council determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in
accordance with section 13(1) of the Legal Aid Services
Council Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing
standards. Those standards require that | comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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REPORT{OFSTHE|DIREGTOR{OEJAUDIT]

- BtEREZRERENREEM An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
T3 7 3R B FE w2k A B Y BRI /{ evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
RETEEMNEER  BUIRHZAE  statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
MAMBEHINBEERERER - FEHTE  judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
RAELEERFBIAFEANZETE misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
RNEEMELFELNEETHETMNEE  fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
M URTEVBRENVERIIRS  considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
e of financial statements that give a true and fair view in

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
PG - BMEGNENBERTRM e circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
HERAKNENTRIRHERE - opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness

L of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
BWa s LR EREDERBAESE accounting estimates made by the Legal Aid Services
W AIF OERENREBKE) 2 Coundl as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
EM/ATH R EEEERRERN2012  financial statements.

FIA BN BIRA KB EZB ILEE
M BEREBENBESRE -

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

#EFEER  In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and
EFEEREEMEESNTT)  fair view of the financial position of the Legal Aid Services
Council as at 31 March 2012, and of its financial performance
20124F9H208  and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
FEETE  properly prepared in accordance with the Legal Aid Services
BHBEF  Coundl Ordinance.
EHITE TR
NEEBRIE2612

Frederick TCWONG
Principal Auditor for Director of Audit

20 September 2012

Audit Commission

26th Floor, Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong
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EEESRREZE2012F3831HL
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2012

g 2012 2011

Note FEHE HKS A HKS
FEREEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
I NG Property, plant and equipment 5 43412 50835
mENEE CURRENT ASSETS 4,933,976 831,943
BIEANERRS Cash at bank and in hand 28 6
FEUWRI S, Interest receivable 2,200 2,200
w"e Deposit 4,936,204 834,149
ikl =R CURRENT LIABILITIES
FENRENEER Accounts payable and accrued charges - (257,579)
R Provision for gratuities (7,150) (7,186)
RIBEUBR A Provision for untaken leave (6,207) (5,738)
EIEMA Deferred income 7 (3,991,384) -

(4,004,741) (270,503)
FRBEE NET CURRENTASSETS 931463 563,646
FEE NET ASSETS 974,875 614,481
FHEERE Representing:
BREE GOVERNMENT FUNDS
REMRED Recurrent subvention 974,875 614,481
FERYEERE T 21 278 A DB FE 3R — B0 D -
LSRR B 201249 A 20 H #EOA B RBIRIE BB KA ERAT -
The accompanying notes 1 to 12 form part of these financial statements.
Approved and authorised for issue by the Legal Aid Services Council on 20 September 2012.
/A

ZZAEE L DrEric LiKa Cheung
F& Chairman
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WL mEEHEE2012E3831 01t
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

T 2012 2011
Note i HKS AL HKS
WA INCOME
BUT R Government subventions 7 5,744,097 5,225,921
AMEWA Interest Income 89 23
5,744,186 5,225,944
Hitbg A OTHER INCOME
Bl EIEEN Recovery of legal costs 8 10,000 424239
5754185 5650183
g3l EXPENDITURE
BEME Staff emoluments 9 (2,935,069) (3,030,448)
e REmN Rent and rates (1,421,766) (1,440,865)
HithF®x Other expenses 10 (422,476) (564,389)
(4,779,311) (5,035,702)
AEERER SURPLUS FORTHE YEAR 974,875 614,481
Htn2EIA Other comprehensive income - -
AEEZENREE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 974,875 614,481
FORTHE YEAR

BEMTEE R =1 278 R LB SRR — AL

The accompanying notes 1 to 12 form part of these financial statements.
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ERASHRBE2012F383181E
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

pe gt

HK$
KEMmpES RECURRENT SUBVENTION FUND
MW2010F4B1 BiEER Balance as at 1 April 2010 506,92
REBFFIA Refunded to Government (506,921)
NEE2HWSIERE Total comprehensive income for the year 614,481
W2011E38 31 B#ER Balance as at 31 March 2011 614,481
RIZEBUTRIE Refunded to Government (614,481)
NEE2HWSIER Total comprehensive income for the year 974,875
201253831 B#EER Balance as at 31 March 2012 974,875

BEMTEERR 1 21278 A SRR —EB4D

The accompanying notes 1 to 12 form part of these financial statements.
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HEREREE2012F3A31HL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011
FHE HKS A HKS
REFHPVRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REERER Surplus for the year 974,875 614,481
e Depreciation 22,181 15,149
F SWA Interest income (89) (23)
H RGBS Decrease in other receivable - 1
FEfIRIB N FEStE B (R4Y)/ (Decrease)/Increase in accounts payable and (257,579) 221469
=pil accrued charges
RIATHE S OB A /3800 (Decrease)/Increase in provision for gratuities (36) 4,548
RIEEREA B B N Increase in provision for untaken leave 469 1,089
TEEEFTSRYISEREEE  NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 739,821 856,714
BEFEMBRIEEHRE  CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BAY= -~ BB NRE Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (14,758) (20,720)
EWFE Interest received 67 21
BEREFENIRE E5E NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (14,691) (20,699)
METHVRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
RIEAIE N Increase in deferred income 3,991,384 -
REBUTFIA Amount refunded to Government (614,481) (506,921)
MEEEFE/(FTAR NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING 3,376,903 (506,921)
ReERg ACTIVITIES
HERFELSEEREM  NETINCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 4,102,033 329,094
B EQUIVALENTS
FYMRERIFESEMEEE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 831,943 502,849
FRMRENFSEMEEE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,933,976 831,943
RERREEFEEREN ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND
BT CASH EQUIVALENTS
BITERNERRS Cash at bank and in hand 4,933,976 831,943

BEMEERE 1 21 270 A e — B0 40

The accompanying notes 1 to 12 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Information

The Legal Aid Services Council (“the Council”) was
incorporated on 1 September 1996 under the Legal Aid
Services Council Ordinance (Cap. 489).

The Council is a non-profit-making organisation formed
for the objective of supervising the provision of legal
aid services in Hong Kong provided by the Legal Aid
Department and advising the Government on legal aid

policy.

The address of its registered office is Room 1601, 16/F,
Top Glory Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the requirements of the Legal
Aid Services Council Ordinance.

2.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared
on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention.

2.3 Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs

The Council has adopted all new/revised HKFRSs
which are effective and relevant to the Council for
the current accounting period.
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ARWEFHEAR ST
B ARERAVER] ~ #TERI K
2R ARERZFEET A
R KB E KRR ETE
HEELNEEETIE - B
ZERAIBIL  PIEHERERM
ZFER]  ERIRERBAK
AREHARIEFRR MM
WRBRERTE -

T B ERIE T Ko
AR RE & SIZ R KM B8k
AMEHATV SIS IERT R ERHK

The Council has not early adopted any
amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the current
accounting period. The Council is in the process
of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial adoption. So far, it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Council’s result of operations and
financial position.

The following developments may result in

S new or amended disclosures in future financial
statements:
R 5IEEs 2 RERRIE ST EIR A W
Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
BREGHEAETIS (KIBFT) @ "THBRKRNER - Hib2E 20124E7H1RH
WHIEENER 1July 2012
Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income
EBMBEREEAE13% : TATETE, 2013%1H1RH

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

1 January 2013

BRGEHERIF195% (2011) - TRERA 2013F1H1H

HKAS 19(2011) Employee Benefits

1 January 2013

BRVHERESEAESR - "SI A 2015F1H1H

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

W 25 5

EALAEMEEARGET
SIS o B 9 B e B A 0 AL 5
BhRS » ZBUTRENES RN
R B AREB RN

EIABBBUTHEI S TR
EHEBASHELR - THEN

1 January 2015

2.4 Revenue recognition

A government subvention is recognised when
there is a reasonable assurance that the Council
will comply with the conditions attaching to it and
that the subvention will be received.

Government subventions relating to income
are deferred and recognised in the income and
expenditure account over the period necessary to
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2.6

match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the principal
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment include furniture
and fixtures and office and computer equipment
costing HKS$5,000 or more with estimated useful
lives longer than one year.

Property, plant and equipment are stated in
the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual values, on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of
property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognised in the income and expenditure
account at the date of disposal.

Employee benefits

Contract gratuities, salaries and annual leave
entitlements are accrued and recognised as
expenditure in the year in which associated
services are rendered by the staff. Staff on-costs,
including pension and housing benefits provided
to the staff by the Government, are charged as
expenditure in the year in which the services are
rendered.
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2.7 REHE
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REFE—EREKT  BREE
SIRENESSINES -

2.7 Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership is retained by the
lessors are classified as operating leases. Rental
payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessors) are
charged to the income and expenditure account
on a straight-line basis over the period of the
relevant leases.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
demand deposits and other short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity when acquired.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Council's major financial instruments are cash at
bank and accounts payable. The main risks associated
with these financial instruments are credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the Council’s cash at bank is
placed with a major licensed bank in Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities. The Council has laid down a liquidity
policy which is reviewed regularly by the Council
members. This policy requires the Council to maintain a
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4. BAREE conservative level of liquid funds on a monthly basis to
. . e ensure the availability of adequate liquid funds to meet
AR EATRRBNE S Ei
By AEEHEARNERS '

i 4. Capital Management
o  ATEERBRBRER &

The capital of the Council consists solely of funds from

o EE-RMINBR  ERE the recurrent government subvention. The Council’s
ARFUEHARHVEE © objectives when managing capital are:
AEEEEANBIE  BEEAD - to comply with the Legal Aid Services Council
BRAERKFEZNRRZH Ordinance; and
BERSMNENTETHEIMRKY - to maintain a capital base to fund the operation
BEEIAE - of the Council for the objective stated in Note 1
above.

The Council manages its capital to ensure that the level
is adequate to fund future expenditure, taking into
account its projected cash flow requirements, future
financial obligations and commitments.

5. WX BEREMR 5. Property, Plant and Equipment
e B TN g
Computer equipment Office equipment Total
A HKS BEE HKS B HKS
A Cost
201084818 At 1 April 2010 37,129 51,774 88,903
EFEBEA Addition during the year 20,720 - 20,720
20114811 At 1 April 2011 57,849 51,774 109623
EEBA Addition during the year 14,758 - 14,758
R201243A31H At 31 March 2012 72,607 51,774 124,381
RIBIHE Accumulated depreciation
F2010F481H At 1 April 2010 32910 10,729 43639
B Charge for the year 4794 10,355 15,149
2011448 1H At 1 April 2011 37,704 21,084 58,788
=R Charge for the year 11,826 10,355 22,181
1R201243R31H At31 March 2012 49,530 31439 50,969
FE Net book value
R201243A31H At 31 March 2012 23,077 20,335 43412
2011438 31H At 31 March 2011 20,145 30,690 50,835
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Contingency Reserve

As agreed in the Director of Administration’s letter of 9
June 1999, the Council can carry a contingency reserve.
The maximum amount of reserve is the sum of

(@ bankinterests earned in the preceding year; and

(b) 5% of the surplus of the Council’s recurrent
subvention (excluding bank interests) over
expenditure in the preceding year.

The approval of the Secretary for Home Affairs must
be sought for any proposed use of the contingency
reserve.

Deferred Income/Government Subvention

Subvention received from the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region amounted to
HKS$9,735,481 (2011: HKS5,225,921).

2012 2011
g HKS L HKS
EBAZEBBIM  Non-recurrent grant for the commissioning 4,000,000 -
BERMRENERE of a consultancy study of the
BN independence of legal aid
RS AE R X Consultancy study related expenses (8,616) -
EFEWA Deferred income 3,991,384 -
BFEEMER Annual recurrent grant 5,704,735 5,200,533
HIELEWATZA Transfer from deferred income 8,616 -
B e Contingency reserve 30,746 25,388
BT+ B Subventions from the Government 5,744,097 5,225,921
feBIFT S Total subventions received 9,735,481 5,225,921

REERM NI B LM EE
MBS HAEL R » FEUCEHREN
R A RBHRERIA -

The non-recurrent grant for the consultancy study is
recognised in the income and expenditure account
over the period necessary to match the grant with the
related costs of the consultancy study.
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8. TmWEEARE 8. Recovery of Legal Costs
RIEEEERE2011E11 8128 Pursuant to the District Court Order of 12 November
BHGmS  MABIREFAN— 2011, the party taking the Council to court was liable
FEAEHRNARNFAER - to pay the Council costs of proceeding in the sum of
AR BEMS$10,000 - £20124F HK$10,000. In March 2012, the Council approved the
3R ARERATESBEAR N write-off of the judgement debt taking into account
B EAK » HEMSRZEAE the facts that the amount involved was small and the
&I o possibility of recovering the amount was remote.
9. BIRE 9. Staff Emoluments
2012 2011
L HKS B HKS
e Salaries
- NBEEET - Civil service staff 2,690,194 2814782
- JEABEBHWET - Non-civil-service contract staff 215,525 194,886
Wimil < Gratuities 11,503 7,186
BEE Provident fund 11,640 10,002
ENREE R Provision for untaken leave for non civil 6,207 3,592

service contract staff

2,935,069 3,030,448

10. HfttZiH 10. Other Expenses

3 2012 2011

Note it HKS AL HKS

TRBLEER / B Production of annual report/newsletter 57,695 56,790
BHRHRY ~ BFK  General publications, periodicals and 43,411 45,709

HSS journals

it EH Accountancy fee 40,500 40,500
FHEHRIBRIAE Recoverable legal costs written off 8 10,000 =
Mg Conferences expenses 107,729 258,079
EITB Other administration expenses 140,960 148,162
e Depreciation 22,181 15,149
422,476 564,389
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1. &g 11. Commitments
RBEAAHEKSEHE  RRAX The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
NRERENTIREENT - non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
2012 2011
B HKS BHE HKS
—FR Not later than 1 year 1,336,152 1,243,261
F_HAER Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2,054,513 3,390,665
3,390,665 4,633,926
12. MBEERVBEBNATFE 12. Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities
WEER R ESENTERaEn The fair values of the Fund's financial assets and liabilities
ANE o BEEEEEY o approximate their carrying amounts at the balance
sheet date.
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MEMBERSHIP OF THE INTEREST GROUPS

AR BhE E EE

Interest Group on Scope of Legal Aid

F & Chairperson

= REMEDIOS Corinne

K E Members
ER CHOI Virginia = @ LEE Arthur
HAEREBE DrHUNG Witman FEAEEA  DrLEE Fook Kay, Aaron
MEREE T DrlAMLee G (EMEEEAE  Dr LEE Wai Hung, Danny *
ERZE  WONG Ng Kit Wah, Cecilia REL LEUNG Wai Man, Raymond
BIJKEX AU S K David /”‘in%f LEUNG Simon
AL BARNES H C Peter* SEEFE  Prof LI Che Lan, Linda*
BREH BURKE Patrick Michael* é?ﬂ £ LI Mang Wah, Paul*
[ S BT CHAN C H Peter FRyE LI Ping Fai, Tommy
R i CHAN Kin Lok, Paul* Ry LIN Annie*
I REL DrCHIU Man Chung, Andy BFEAEEA  DrllUWing Hong*
HREZIE  Prof CHONG Tai Leung, Terence BT LO Kwing Yu
RS CHONG Y K Sherman IR MAK Hoi Wah
il # HO Frankie* FRELYE MAK L S Mabel*
A4S HO K K Thomas BIRA MAK Simon
R4 HO Man Kit, Raymond* REE NG Yan Yee*
A= HO Siu Leung, Nelson T PANESAR M Mahinder*
IR HO Veng lan, Rebecca* TER PANG Hing Tung, Pierre*
BEKEEAE  DrlPWing Yuk, Josephine* eitSiiNeE] TANG Pui Yee, Phoebe
HES KAN Lai Ching ZHRE TSOI Yiu Cheong, Richard*
STEE KONG Florence HRFI  WONG CHANTszYing, Ruth
B KWAN Lai Hung FER WONG Chi Yuen*
SRR KWOK K B Benny* =R WONG Kim Man
ek LAl Kam Wah N WONG Wang Tai, lvan*
Rt EE LAl Sai Hong RiER WU KN Paul
N LAITinYin, Fion* S Prof XU Ying
MRS LAM Cheung Chi B E YAN Frankie
MEI&1EL  Dr LAM Kwok Wing* 15 HBEB4A  DrYEUNG Chiu Fat, Henry*
BB LAM Lit Yin Efgon YIP Kin Keung
TRIEW LAM Wai Pan, Wilson*
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Interest Group on Processing, Assignment & Monitoring of Assigned-out Cases

FJ& Chairperson

* B8N0\ M (BEEER/ ) RS members who jointed both Interest Groups

RRE(S HUNG Stephen

& Members
WERFE DELANEY Michael pAE= LIANG Pui Saw Kian, Susan
EYE AU Miu Po iEZ e LIN Annie*
&R B AU Yuk Lun, Anthony BE4E LIU Kwong Sang
- Prof AUGHTERSON Ned BYR ¥k LIU Po Chu
TR BARNES H C Peter* BREEE Dr LIU Wing Hong*
EREL BURKE Patrick Michael* B LUKY P Evin
EHE BUT Sun Wai ZRELE MAK L S Mabel*
BRANEE CHAN Honby - McGOWAN H M James
R fi2 CHAN Kin Lok, Paul* R NG Kin Wah
BRITAN CHAN Yuen King, Paul R NG Ray
Bz CHANG Ka Chung 28 NG Yan Yee*
FEIEIES CHIU Kwok Wing, Benedict T PANESAR M Mahinder*
T & CHUANG Yim, Chris TER PANG Hing Tung, Pierre*
EBYHREL Dr CHUNG Barick ER SADHWANI Kamlesh Arjan
FEIRE DALY Mark Douglas ETIEREE Dr SIU Che Hung, Paul
{A] %28 HO Frankie* B TAMKY Patrick
AT HO Man Kai gL TANG Chi Keung, Paul
AR HO Man Kit, Raymond* MR TO Wai Keung
AR HO Veng lan, Rebecca* BRE TSANG K L Kitty
EREELE Dr IP Wing Yuk, Josephine* RS TSOIYiu Cheong, Richard*
FILE KOO Tsang Hoi E28E VIDLER Michael John
SRR KWOK K B Benny* Nk Eard WAN Kam Chuen
SRR AL KWOK LitTung, JP FER WONG ChiYuen*
SRiER KWOK Wai Keung T WONG Kim Tin
=& KWOK William 0 WONG Tzena
BRE LAITin Yin, Fion* HEE WONG Wai Yin, Zachary
P \Eas LAM Kin Pui B WONG Wang Tai, lvan*
NETE Dr LAM Kwok Wing* E=E WONG Kwai Sang, Kays
R R LAM Pui San, Pauline R WONG Yiu Shing
TRIBW LAM Wai Pan, Wilson* SiE=E WU Bernard
I LAMY H Andy RER WU KN Paul
TRIERL Dr LEE Wai Hung, Danny* KA YAU Shui Yung, Lousana
EEHIT Prof LI Che Lan, Linda* BBRELE Dr YEUNG Chiu Fat, Henry*
FRIB LI Ka Fung, Alan SEIR YEUNG Sui Yin, Victor
SR LI Mang Wah, Paul* Efga YIP Kin Keung*
S 9% LIW M Amanda REX YU Kwong Man
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MEMBERSHIP OF THE WORKING PARTIES

i B AR ARES T\l

Working Party on Community Legal Services

F & Chairperson
RS Dr LAM Lee G

E Members
REE(S HUNG Stephen HaREL Dr HUNG Witman

#2325 & Co-opted Member
FER (FFEE ) CHANOY Juliana, LAD

EREBEVBIIE T EE

Working Party on Independence of Legal Aid

F & Chairperson
MR Dr LAM Lee G

& Members
KBRS DELANEY Michael ERRE WONG NG Kit Wah, Cecilia
HeaREBL Dr HUNG Witman

= Otk R By a Y TR/ VA

Working Party on Cross-strait Legal Aid Conference

a5 B E A Co-convenor
SRS+ Dr HUNG Witman ERZEE WONG NG Kit Wah, Cecilia

ERMEERESE

Organising Commnttee on Seminar on Legal Aid

Ht5 &% Co-organiser
BERE CHOIVirginia ERZAE WONG NG Kit Wah, Cecilia

FARNISTY
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Hong Kong

E|AE Tel: (852) 2838 5378
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